Appendix E



Flood Risk Assessment for Shell Filling Rooms

Priddy's Hard, Gosport, Hants





Flood Risk Assessment for

Shell Filling Rooms

Priddy's Hard, Gosport, Hants

Prepared By

W L Fielder Graduate Civil Engineer

Reviewed By

A P Traves Associate Director Opus International Consultants (UK) Ltd Fareham Office Modulus House, Salterns Lane Fareham, PO16 oQS United Kingdom

Telephone: Facsimile: +44 1329 822021 +44 1329 825274

Date: Reference: Status: 16 September 2014 EF1201 FRA/WLF Issue 1



Contents

1	Introduction1
2	Development Description & Location1
3	Local Development Documents & Strategic Flood Risk Assessment1
4	Catchment Flood Management & Shoreline Management Plans 2
5	Catchment Data3
6	Sewerage Authority Data3
7	Walkover Survey3
8	Source-Pathway-Receptor Assessments3
9	Flood Probability4
10	Climate Change5
11	Detailed Development Proposals & Surface Water Strategy5
12	Sequential & Exception Tests6
13	Flood Risk Management Measures6
14	Off Site Impacts7
15	Residual Risks7

Appendices

Existing and Proposed Site Layout
SFRA Data & EA Data
Proposed Sea Wall and Drainage Schematics
Conditions & Limitations

1 Introduction

- 1.1 Instructions were received from Haxted Estates Ltd to undertake a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) for the development of nine residential dwellings on land at the former Shell Filling Rooms, Priddy's Hard, Herritage Way, Hampshire.
- 1.2 This assessment has been prepared by W L Fielder MEng
- 1.3 The client's attention is drawn to the conditions and limitations contained in Appendix D.

2 Development Description & Location

- 2.1 The development site comprises some 0.8 Ha of land at the former Shell Filling Rooms, Priddy's Hard, Herritage Way, Hampshire (grid reference SU 61372 00975). The land is identified on the aerial photograph in Appendix.
- 2.2 The site currently comprises the site of a number of demolished, previously disused buildings, previously owned by the Ministry of Defence.
- 2.3 The proposed development is a revised proposal for which a Flood Risk Assessment was prepared by Cowan Consultancy for Bayview Developments (ref BPW/26672/LAC revision 8/2/07) The former application and FRA related to 9 new dwellings with a sea defence to the access road and plot frontage and retention of a large earthwork to provide the rear defence. The current application is very similar in flood risk terms and uses the same principles, albeit the position of 3 of the dwellings has been adjusted slightly. Reference is made throughout this FRA to the previous FRA.

The currently proposed layout of the site is shown on JPA drawing in Appendix A.

3 Local Development Documents & Strategic Flood Risk Assessment

- 3.1 The Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH) Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) has been reviewed (refer to appendix for local mapping) and this indicates the following:
- 3.2 SFRA map set 1A indicates the site wholly within undefended FZ2 (tidal).
- 3.3 SFRA map set 1B indicates that the dwelling positions are not within a hazard zone. The historic earthwork moat to the rear is within the hazard zone together with land immediately to the rear of the current shoreline.
- 3.4 SFRA map set 1D indicates the site is not in an area that has a breach index.
- 3.5 SFRA map set 1E indicates the site lies in 2115AD Climate change FZ3 (undefended).

- 3.6 SFRA map set 1F1 indicates that the land to the south of the site, immediately abutting the coastline, is subject to low wave energy.
- 3.7 SFRA map set 1F2 indicates the site overlies moderate permeability bedrock and is not in an historic groundwater flooding area.
- 3.8 SFRA map set 1F5 indicates no observed sewer flooding incidents at the site.
- 3.9 SFRA EA flood zone map set indicates the southern part of the site is within FZ3 (tidal), with the majority of the site within FZ2 (tidal).
- 3.10 SFRA EA historic flood zone map set indicates the site is not in an historic flood zone.
- 3.11 SFRA EA pluvial flood zone map set indicates the site does not contain any pluvial flood risk areas.
- 3.12 SFRA EA surface water flood zone map set indicates the site does not contain any surface water flood risk areas.
- 3.13 Flood mapping data has also been reviewed from the EA website (refer to Appendix for local mapping). This indicates the following:
- 3.14 The EA mapping indicates the land to the south and north of the site is within FZ3, with the majority of the site within FZ2.
- 3.15 The EA mapping indicates the site is not in an area at risk of flooding from reservoirs.
- 3.16 The EA mapping indicates the site is not located in a Source Protection Zone.
- 3.17 The EA mapping indicates the site is not within a safeguard zone for drinking water.
- 3.18 The EA mapping indicates the groundwater is not within a groundwater safeguard zone for drinking water.

4 Catchment Flood Management & Shoreline Management Plans

- 4.1 The South East Hampshire Catchment Flood Management Plan summary December 2009 (CFMP) indicates the site falls within Policy sub-area 1 Portsmouth and Langstone Harbours. The CFMP states that Policy 5 is the preferred policy approach:
 - "Areas of moderate to high flood risk where we can generally take further action to reduce flood risk. This policy will tend to be applied to those areas where the case for further action to reduce flood risk is most compelling, for example where there are many people at high risk, or where changes in the environment have already increased risk. Taking further action to reduce risk will require additional appraisal to assess whether there are socially and environmentally sustainable, technically viable and economically justified options."

- 4.2 Overall the CFMP does not present any issues that would prohibit the development of this site with respect to flood issues provided the surface water drainage is based on SuDS principles.
- 4.3 The North Solent Shoreline Management Plan(SMP) indicate the site frontage lies in policy unit 5a25. SMP Figures 16-18 indicate the unit policy to be Hold the Line for all three epochs. Unit 5a25 policy unit mapping and details indicate the development site as an important heritage site which has contributed to the Hold the Line policy. This also indicates national and international designations to the tidal land to the south of the site. The previous FRA predates the current SMP but was aligned to the previous SMP. The current development proposal retains the principle of defending the heritage assets and retaining the international designations on the tidal land to the south. The current proposals are therefore still consistent with SMP policy.

5 Catchment Data

- 5.1 The BGS Geology of Britain viewer indicates the site bedrock geology to be Wittering Formation (sand silt and clay) with superficial River terrace deposits.
- 5.2 The site is on the coast and has a nominal generic fall towards the shoreline.

6 Sewerage Authority Data

6.1 Prior to the recession the previous planning permission was partially implemented inclusive of the construction of the access road to Searle Way and the installation of a foul water rising main connecting to Searle Way. The apparatus is not currently live as the houses were not completed. It is proposed to retain this discharge albeit with slightly amended position to three of the houses.

7 Walkover Survey

7.1 The site remains in a partially complete state from the previous permission. The access road, utility supplies and sea wall were constructed to the entry point into the main site area. Within the main site area no flood defence walls have yet been built and the houses were not progressed far beyond ground floor level.

8 Source-Pathway-Receptor Assessments

- 8.1 The site is in undefended tidal FZ2, but with the previously agreed defences would be protected up to $2114_{AD} 0.5\%$ AEP + freeboard tidal events.
- 8.2 The site is not in the vicinity of surface water courses and is not considered to be at risk of fluvial flooding

- 8.3 The site is not located in the vicinity of any reservoirs and EA flood risk from reservoirs mapping does not indicate any reservoir flood risk to the site.
- 8.4 The site is not in a location with sewer flooding incidents and is not considered to be at risk of sewer flooding.
- 8.5 The SFRA data does not indicate the site to be at risk of groundwater flooding.
- 8.6 The SFRA and EA mapping indicate the site is not within a pluvial or surface water flood risk area.
- 8.7 The governing flood mode for the site is tidal.
- 8.8 The new flood receptors of the development would be:
 - The new residential dwelling
 - Residents in the new dwelling
- 8.9 The proposed development and existing site classifications to Table 2 of NPPF Technical Guidance are as follows:

More vulnerable

- Extant permitted residential use More vulnerable
- Proposed residential use
- 8.10 Overall with the construction of the seawall, the proposed dwellings will be a low flood risk.

9 Flood Probability

9.1 The Environment Agency (EA) flood zones, shown on the outputs and included in the Appendix, represents current best estimates of zone 2 and zone 3 flooding as defined in Table 1 of the Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework. It does not take account of potential climate change impacts.

Zone 2	Medium Probability of tidal flooding (0.5%-0.1%)
Zone 3a	High Probability of tidal flooding (>1%)
Zone 3b	Functional Floodplain (>5% probability of flooding)

- The flood map does not differentiate between zones 3a and 3b.
- Zone 3b is only considered appropriate for water-compatible development.
- Zone 3a is additionally considered appropriate for less vulnerable uses.
- 9.2 The site is currently FZ2 (undefended), but with the previously agreed defences would be protected up to 2114_{AD} 0.5% AEP + freeboard tidal events.

10 Climate Change

- 10.1 Assuming a design life of 100 years, increase in rainfall (Table 5 of NPPF Technical Guidance.) due to climate change is +30% to current rates. The SFRA mapping indicates the site would be located in FZ3 (tidal) in 2115AD, but with the previously agreed defences would be protected up to 2114_{AD} 0.5% AEP + freeboard tidal events.
- 10.2 The EA and the ESCP identify a predicted 2115AD still water 0.5%AEP Extreme Tidal Level (ETL) of 4.3m AOD. The previous FRA proposed a defence level of 4.76m AOD and the current proposal retains this proposed level. (The section of seawall constructed to date accords with the minimum required crest level of 4.76m AOD)
- 10.3 Surface water drainage strategy is discussed in section 11. The volumes and flows for this strategy have been derived in accordance with CIRIA C697 and include for climate change effects.

11 Detailed Development Proposals & Surface Water Strategy

- 11.1 The current proposal will retain a seawall to the southern and western sides of the site contiguous with the existing seawall constructed to date. However the alignment of the proposed seawall on the southern side will be revised inland to accommodate ecological considerations on the land. The defence of the central part of the southern side will utilise the remaining elements of the historic masonry blast wall and earthwork left from the demolition work on the previous scheme. The flood gate in the wall to the western end of the site, required by the previous planning permission will be retained in the new proposal. As per the previous FRA the earthwork between the proposed buildings and old moat is massive and of ample elevation to provide the majority of the defence to outflanking flows from this direction. A small section of the northern edge of the proposed car park is slightly below 4.76m AOD and it is proposed to introduce a small earthwork to this location to provide contiguous protection up to 4.8m AOD. The defences are summarised on the schematic contained in Appendix C.
- 11.2 Rainwater falling within the site will be incepted by the site surface water drainage system. The access road elements for this are already installed in accordance with the previous planning permission and will be retained. The system for the remainder of the development is partially complete and it is proposed to retain as much of this as practicable and to utilise the same principles as the previous planning permission arrangement. In terms of detail the pick up points eg RWP positions will alter slightly to suit. There were previously two discharge positions. One from the car park out to the moat serving the access road and car park; the second collecting the remainder of the plot runoff and discharging to the ditch just outside the western site boundary. Both systems will continue to pass beneath the sea defences and be protected from backflow by a double flap valve arrangement. Both systems will use a stone/rock filled trench to act as a diffuser. The discharge to the East is already complete and includes a petrol interceptor, it is proposed to add an interceptor to the western discharge. The discharge to the west was located there to satisfy a request from the operators

of the adjacent land for delivery of surface water to them as for ecological reasons they had a shortfall of water sources for their habitat needs. In both cases surface water discharges outside the defence and due to the tidal nature of the flood source flood levels are determined by meteorological circumstances and will not be affected by the discharges.

11.3 A copy of the drainage layout is contained in Appendix C.

12 Sequential & Exception Tests

- 12.1 Development at the site is necessary to deliver the defences to protect the heritage assets and deliver SMP policy for SMP unit 5a25. This is consistent between the previous flood management strategy/SMP/planning permission and the current strategy/SMP/planning proposal. Pre application consultation was undertaken with East Solent Coastal Partnership to verify the continuing suitability of the amended scheme with respect to current plans and policy. This has been confirmed by ESCP.
- 12.2 With respect to the Exceptions Test:
 - Wider sustainability benefits are provided by the protection of the heritage assets.
 - The proposed seawall of minimum crest level 4.76m AOD is consistent with the previous FRA and agreed defence levels and accords with defence requirements for 2114_{AD} 0.5% AEP flood levels plus freeboard. The development will therefore be safe for its lifetime.
 - As set out in section 11 the development will not increase flood risk elsewhere, and the delivery of the complete sea defence section will provide defence to a wider area beyond the site reducing flood risk overall.

13 Flood Risk Management Measures

- 13.1 The source pathway receptor assessment is contained in Chapter 8.
- 13.2 Paragraph 8.7 identifies that tidal is the governing flood source.
- 13.3 The delivery of the remaining elements forming a complete and continuous local sea defence asset will protect the site to 2114_{AD} 0.5% AEP + freeboard flood events. This comprises:
 - Completion of additional seawall section to minimum crest level of 4.76m AOD.
 - Installation of approved flood gate in western boundary defence wall.
 - Short length of small earthwork embankment between the car park and moat to minimum crest level of 4.76m AOD.
 - Utilisation of existing southern blast wall base to form defence to minimum crest level of 4.786m AOD.
 - Flap valve protection to the two discharges beneath the defences.

14 Off Site Impacts

14.1 The surface water discharges to land in the coastal margin beyond the defence line. Flooding of these points is tidal and the discharge will not affect tidal flood levels or durations.

15 Residual Risks

15.1 The surface water discharges to land in the coastal margin beyond the defence line. Flooding of these points is tidal and the discharge will not affect tidal flood levels or durations. The proposed flood management strategy for the development provides for flood events up to 2114_{AD} 0.5% AEP plus freeboard. The residual flood risk is therefore events in excess of 2114_{AD} +0.5% AEP.

APPENDIX A:

Existing & Proposed Site Layout



Aerial view on site.



APPENDIX B:

SFRA Map Data and EA Data



SFRA map set 1A Flood Zones (undefended)



SFRA map set 1B Flood Zone 3 (undefended) hazard map



SFRA map set 3A Present day defence standard



SFRA map set 3C present defence standard against 2115_{AD} tides



SFRA map set 1D Danger from Breaching Flood Zone 3



SFRA map set 1E Climate Change 2115_{AD} Flood Zone 3



SFRA map set 1F1 Wave energy and overtopping



SFRA map set 1F2 Groundwater Flooding & Bedrock Permeability



SFRA map set 1F5 Observed Southern Water Sewer Flooding



SFRA EA flood zone map



SFRA

Environment Agency Historic flood Map



SFRA

Environment Agency Areas of Susceptibility to Pluvial Surface Water Flooding



SFRA Environment Agency Surface Water Flood Map



Customers in Wales - From 1 April 2013 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) has taken over the responsibilities of the Environment Agency in Wales. © Environment Agency copyright and database rights 2014. © Ordnance Survey Crown copyright All rights reserved. Environment Agency, 100026380. Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2014. This service is designed to inform members of the public, in line with our terms and conditions. For business or commercial use, please contact us.

EA web map Local Main River Network



EA web map **Flood Zones**

Flood Zone definitions are set out in the National Planning Policy Guidance:

- * Flood Zone 1 land assessed as having a less than 1 in 1,000 annual probability of river or sea flooding (<0.1%) * Flood Zone 2 land assessed as having between a 1 in 100 and 1 in 1,000 annual probability of river flooding

(1% - 0.1%), or between a 1 in 200 and 1 in 1,000 annual probability of sea flooding (0.5% - 0.1%) in any year * Flood Zone 3 - land assessed as having a 1 in 100 or greater annual probability of river flooding (>1%), or a 1 in 200 or greater annual probability of flooding from the sea (>0.5%) in any year

Note: These flood zones refer to the probability of river and sea flooding, ignoring the presence of defences.



Customers in Wales - From 1 April 2013 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) will take over the responsibilities of the Environment Agency in Wales. © Environment Agency copyright and database rights 2014. © Ordnance Survey Crown copyright. All rights reserved Environment Agency, 100028380 Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2014. This service is designed to inform members of the public, in line with our terms and conditions. For business or commercial use, please contact us.

EA web map Risk of Flooding from Rivers and the Sea

What does 'very low' mean?

Very low means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of less than 1 in 1000 (0.1%).

What does 'low' mean?

Low means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of between 1 in 1000 (0.1%) and 1 in 100 (1%).

What does 'medium' mean?

Medium means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of between 1 in 100 (1%) and 1 in 30 (3.3%).

What does 'high' mean?

High means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of greater than 1 in 30 (3.3%).

This takes into account the effect of any flood defences that may be in this area. Flood defences reduce, but do not completely stop the chance of flooding as they can be overtopped or fail.



Environment Agency copyright and database rights 2014. © Ordnance Survey Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Environment Agency, 10002838 Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2014. This service is designed to inform members of the cubic. In the with our terms and conditions. For business or commercial use, please contact us.

EA web map Risk of flooding from Reservoirs

Where an extent is shown:

N/A for this site

Reservoir flooding is extremely unlikely to happen. There has been no loss of life in the UK from reservoir flooding since 1925. All large reservoirs must be inspected and supervised by reservoir panel engineers. As the enforcement authority for the Reservoirs Act 1975 in England, we ensure that reservoirs are inspected regularly and essential safety work is carried out.

However, in the unlikely event that a reservoir dam failed, a large volume of water would escape at once and flooding could happen with little or no warning. If you live or work in an area that could be affected, you should plan in advance what you would do in an emergency. You may need to evacuate immediately. Consider where you would go to safety, and be ready to follow the advice of emergency services.

To find out about local emergency plans, contact the local authority listed above. Be aware that they may not be able to give you any specific information immediately as developing reservoir emergency plans is a new responsibility.



Click on the map for a more detailed explanation. Data search O Map of X: 461,346; Y: 101,148 at scale 1:10,000 Map legend Risk of Flooding from Surface Water -• • • +

> opyright. All rights rese and database right 2014 lities of the Enviro s reserved. Envir 2013 Ns NRW) will ta ent Agency in Wales. ent Agency, 100026380. © E This se

Risk of flooding from surface water EA web map

What does 'very low' mean?

Very low means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of less than 1 in 1000 (0.1%).

What does 'low' mean?

High

Medium Low Very Low

Low means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of between 1 in 1000 (0.1%) and 1 in 100 (1%).

What does 'medium' mean?

Medium means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of between 1 in 100 (1%) and 1 in 30 (3.3%).

What does 'high' mean?

High means that each year, this area has a chance of flooding of greater than 1 in 30 (3.3%).

This type of flooding can be difficult to predict, much more so than river or sea flooding as it is hard to forecast exactly where or how much rain will fall in any storm.

This is based on the best information we have available, such as ground levels and drainage.



EA web map Groundwater Source Protection Zones



EA web map Groundwater vulnerability Zones



EA web map River Basin Management Plan current quantitative Groundwater Quality



EA web map River Basin Management Plan current Chemical Quality



EA web map Drinking Water Protection Areas (Surface Water)



© Environment Agency copyright and database rights 2014. © Ordnance Survey Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Environment Agency, 1000263 Contains Royal Mail data © Royal Mail copyright and database right 2014. This service is designed to inform members of the public, in line with our terms and conditions. For business or commercial use, please contact us

EA web map Drinking Water Protection Areas (Groundwater)

APPENDIX C:

Proposed Sea Wall & Drainage Water Schematics





23.09.2014 Drawing No. 300	AM Revision Date Revision Date Drainage	The Shell Filling R Gosport.			Purple Sectration 2000 Cell 2000 Cell 200
Sheet. No. Revision		looms	Invert level on private drain. Invert level on private drain.	In accordance with the Civil Engineer Specification for the Water Industry 7th Edition, clause S.23.	 In the down if with the negative transmission of the set of the negative transmission of the negative transm

APPENDIX D:

Conditions & Limitations

<u>OPUS</u>

ENGINEER'S INSPECTION

CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

- 1. The report is a record of a visual inspection carried out by, or under the direction of a Chartered Structural Engineer and must not be misinterpreted as a Structural Survey such as would be carried out by a Chartered Surveyor. The report is not a Valuation Survey.
- 2. The inspection is strictly limited to the items requested and these will be detailed in Clause 1 of the report. No consideration will be given to any other aspects or parts of the building.
- 3. The report is confidential to the Client(s) stated in Clause 1 and has been prepared to their instructions for their own purposes only and it is not permitted to disclose this report to any other parties (except the Clients own Solicitors, Surveyors, Building Societies or Estate Agents) without the prior consent of Opus.
- 4. The copyright of this report remains the property of Opus.
- 5. No liability for the contents of this report is accepted to any parties other than the Client(s) stated in Clause 1.1. No parties other than the client stated in Clause 1.1 should rely upon this report.
- 6. Unless specifically stated otherwise:
 - a) Trial holes will not be excavated prior to the preparation of the report and the depth and construction of the foundations and type of sub-soil will not be inspected.
 - b) All external observations will be carried out by eye from the ground level only. Internal inspection is made within the limits of ready accessibility and it is not normal practice to lift floor coverings or floor boards, remove fixtures, panels or plaster, or move heavy items of furniture or bulky goods or materials.
 - c) No inspection will be made of any roof voids, floor joists, wall cavities, drainage pipework or any other hidden or inaccessible parts.
 - d) No timbers will be checked for damp, rot, infestation by wood-boring insects or other defects.
 - e) It should not be construed that any parts of the construction comply with the requirements of the Building Regulations Act or standard practice either current or as current at the time of original construction. No enquiries to any Authorities will be made.
 - f) No testing or enquiries into the presence of or susceptibility to pollution, contamination, radiation, methane, radon or other gases or hazardous substances has been carried out.
- 7. Unless specifically stated otherwise in the report, any recommendations for works given in the report are outline only and are to be confirmed or modified as appropriate at detailed design stage.
- 8. Where trial holes are specifically included in our instructions the condition of the footing and the founding soil relates only to the point of excavation and does not necessarily confirm a continuation of the same conditions throughout the non-inspected areas of the structure. Whilst such trial pits will usually provide a reasonable indication as to the general state of the foundations and ground conditions, these cannot be determined with complete certainty.
- 9. Under the Construction (Design & Management) Regulations latest edition, the Client has obligations for ensuring Health and Safety arising from any construction work. If it is proposed to proceed with construction work based upon information or recommendations contained in this report, these regulations probably apply. Further details of any issues arising from our report or the Clients obligations generally are available on request.
- 10. Unless dealt with more specifically above the Association of Consulting Engineers Conditions of Engagement Short Form Agreement 2002 apply.

Registered in England & Wales, Company Reg. No: 2847568 Reg Office: Willow House, Brotherswood Court Great Park Road, Bristol, BS32 4QW



Opus International Consultants (UK) Ltd Modulus House, Salterns Lane Fareham, PO16 oQS United Kingdom

t: +44 1329 822021 f: +44 1329 825274 w: www.opusinternational.co.uk